Advanced Adapter ORing Solutions using the TPS23753

Application Report

HPA/Power Interface

SLVA306A-July 2008-Revised February 2009

Eric Wright

# ABSTRACT

The TPS23753 has a number of features that simplify ORing of Power over Ethernet (PoE) and ac-powered adapters. These features are integrated into the powered device (PD) and dc/dc controller to provide an integrated solution set. This application note explores these features and provides other critical information.

Contents

1	Introduction			
2	Power Insertion			
3	TPS23753 Internal Support Feature		. 4	
	3.1	Option 1 ORing	. 4	
	3.2	Option 2, PoE Preference	. 5	
	3.3	Option 2, Adapter Preference and APD	10	
	3.4	Option 3, PoE Priority	12	
	3.5	Option 3, Adapter Priority	13	
	3.6	Keeping the PSE Powered With Options 2 and 3	14	
4	Conclusion		14	
5	Refe	ences	14	

### List of Figures

1	Power Insertion Options		
2	Option 1 ORing		
3	Use of Diode D <sub>VDD</sub> for PoE Preference		
4	Use of Additional Circuitry to Provide PoE Priority Including 48-V Adapters		
5	PoE Priority Circuit Using Controlled Adapter High-Side Switch	7	
6	PoE Priority Circuit Using Controlled Adapter Low-Side Switch	8	
7	Additional ESD Protection With PoE Priority	9	
8	Adapter Preference Using the APD Pin Function	10	
9	Option 3 With PoE Preference	12	
10	Use of the DEN Pin to Disable the PoE MOSFET	13	
11	Keeping the PSE Source On in the Presence of an Adapter Source	14	
	List of Tables		

# 1 Solution Summary ..... 4





### 1 Introduction

Many PoE-capable devices are designed to operate from either a wall adapter or PoE power. A local power solution adds cost and complexity, but allows a product to be used regardless of PoE availability. Whereas most applications only require that the two sources coexist, the TPS23753 is designed to ease power-source control.

The TPS23753 is a combined PoE PD interface and current-mode dc/dc controller specifically optimized for isolated converter designs. The TPS23753 supports a number of input voltage ORing options including natural high voltage, external adapter preference, and PoE preference.

Figure 1 illustrates three options for diode ORing external power into a PD. Only one of the following options would be used in any particular design. Each insertion point has unique voltage, inrush current, and power handoff (i.e., handoff from PSE to the adapter and vice versa) profiles.

The TPS23753 simplifies supply ORing through use of the V<sub>DD1</sub>, APD, and DEN pins. The APD and DEN pins can be used to disable the internal hotswap MOSFET and class regulator while the separate V<sub>DD1</sub> pin allows isolation of the PoE input and converter supply voltages. The ability to disable the internal hotswap MOSFET is necessary for both option 2 and 3 adapter preference configurations while the independent  $V_{DD1}$  pin simplifies PoE preference configuration for option 2.

Adapter input ORing diodes are shown for all the options to protect against a reverse input voltage or short on the input pins, protection of low-voltage adapters from 48V, and to allow a natural ORing of PoE and auxiliary voltage. ORing is sometimes accomplished with a MOSFET in option 3.

### 2 Power Insertion

Option 1 applies power to the TPS23753 PoE input, option 2 inserts power between the TPS23753 PoE section and the converter, and option 3 applies power to the output side of the PoE power converter. Each of these options has advantages and disadvantages. The wall adapter must meet a minimum 1500-Vac dielectric withstand test voltage between the output and all other connections for options 1 and 2. The adapter only needs 1500-Vac isolation for option 3 if it is not provided by the converter.



**Figure 1. Power Insertion Options** 

Considerations for each ORing option and source preference is outlined below.



- Option 1General
  - Requires 48-V, isolated output (from mains and ground) adapter
- Benefits
  - Adapter inrush current is managed when the PoE source (PSE) is not present.
- Limitations
  - The PSE cannot detect and power the PD if adapter power is present first.
    - PSE priority is difficult
    - Adapter priority requires circuitry to disable the PoE input.
  - Adapter inrush current is not managed when PSE is present.
    - Plugging in a higher-voltage adapter causes a large momentary current surge.
    - Insertion of a higher-voltage-magnitude adapter may cause the PD to restart due to PD current limit.
  - The larger-voltage-magnitude source (PoE or adapter) provides power when both sources are present.
    - Natural ORing effect
    - Adapter priority requires a relay-like solution to open the PoE input.
    - A lower-voltage PSE may power off.

# **Option 2**

- General
  - Requires 12-V-48-V, isolated output (from mains and ground) adapter.
  - Lower-voltage adapters typically used when product family predates PoE.
- Benefits
  - Using the APD feature feature is a simple way to achieve adapter power preference.
  - Separating  $V_{DD}$  and  $V_{DD1}$  with a diode is a simple way of achieving PoE preference.
    - Easiest with 12-V or 24-V adapters
- Limitations
  - Adapter hot-plug (adapter powered before insertion into PD) can cause large inrush current from adapter.
    - This is not generally viewed as an issue.
  - Wide input operating voltage (12-V–48-V) converters typically are larger and/or less efficient than a 48-V-only converter.
  - The PD will usually restart when adapter preference is used and adapter power goes away.
  - Many adapter voltage and loading combinations guarantee that PoE preference will cause a restart as PoE takes over.
  - PoE preference and 48V adapters require extra circuits to over-ride natural diode ORing.
  - Option 3 provides a more optimal solution for 12-V adapters.

# **Option 3**

- General
  - Power is ORed to the PoE converter output.
  - Grounded output adapter may be used if the converter isolates the primary to the secondary.
  - PoE and adapter may be ORed with diodes or MOSFETs for better efficiency.
  - PoE operation may be disabled when secondary power is present using DEN.
- Benefits
  - Most optimal and efficient method of ORing 12-V (or lower) adapters.
  - Permits wider choice of low-voltage adapters.
- Limitations
  - Adapter preference using DEN requires extra circuit.
  - Difficult to use with synchronous rectifiers in the converter.

# 3 TPS23753 Internal Support Feature

Source Priority	Option 1	Option 2	Option 3
PoE priority	PoE present first and $V_{POE} > V_{ADP}$ , APD < 1.0 V No viable solution if ADP is present first.	$\begin{array}{l} \text{APD} < 1.0 \text{ V},  \text{V}_{\text{POE}} > \text{V}_{\text{ADP}}, \\ \text{Separate } \text{V}_{\text{DD}} \text{ and } \text{V}_{\text{DD1}} \text{ with} \\ \text{diode} \\ \text{Requires additional circuit} \\ \text{when } \text{V}_{\text{POE}} < \text{V}_{\text{ADP}} \end{array}$	$V_{OUT} > V_{ADP}$ Use Diode ORing or MOSFET ORing on adapter.
Adapter priority	Adapter present first. Requires additional circuit to handle PoE present first and $V_{POE} > V_{ADP}$ . APD < 1.0 V	APD > 1.5 V, $V_{DD}$ connected to $V_{DD1}$	$V_{DEN} = V_{SS}$ disables the internal hotswap MOSFET Synchronous converter requires output blocking MOSFET

**Table 1. Solution Summary** 

# 3.1 Option 1 ORing

Figure 2 shows a simple implementation for ORing option 1. Because ORing option 1 furnishes power through the internal hot-swap MOSFET, the PD selects the source based on the voltage and order.

### 3.1.1 Case 1: PSE Powers PD

The PSE powers the PD when PSE voltage is applied before, and is greater than the adapter voltage. The PSE continues to furnish power to the PD in the presence of an adapter voltage source as long as the PSE voltage is greater than that of the adapter. When the PSE and adapter voltages are nearly equal, some sharing between the sources may occur. The PSE may drop the PD due to PD current being below the dc maintain power signature (MPS) of 10 mA. Once the PSE drops the PD and an adapter source is present, PSE detection is blocked.

### 3.1.2 Case 2: Adapter Powers PD

The adapter powers the PD when the adapter voltage is greater than the PSE voltage. Once the adapter source is present and powering the PD, detection by the PSE is blocked.



Figure 2. Option 1 ORing



# 3.2 Option 2, PoE Preference

Figure 3 illustrates a simple circuit for option 2, PoE preference implemented by the use of a diode,  $D_{VDD}$ . PoE preference is accomplished by blocking adapter voltage from the PD section through the use of  $D_{VDD}$ , allowing normal detection and classification to occur. Adapter and PoE voltages are diode ORed together, meaning that PSE power is drawn as long as the adapter voltage is less than the PoE-derived voltage from  $V_{DD1}$  to RTN. If the PD is adapter-powered before PSE power is applied,  $D_{VDD}$  blocks adapter voltage from  $V_{DD1}$  to RTN. If the PD is adapter-powered before PSE power is applied from  $V_{DD}$  blocks adapter voltage from  $V_{DD}$ - $V_{SS}$ , permitting detection and classification. When the PSE applies full 48-V power, the converter momentarily turns off as the bulk capacitor is charged, then restarts. If PoE power drops while the adapter is present, converter operation should be unaffected.



Figure 3. Use of Diode D<sub>VDD</sub> for PoE Preference



### TPS23753 Internal Support Feature

The highest voltage source (as see by  $V_{DD1}$ ) will supply power if a 48-V adapter is used with this solution due to diode ORing. When the adapter voltage is greater than the PoE voltage, the PSE will stop supplying current and could turn off due to dc MPS. The PSE continues to restart and drop the PD as long as adapter power is present. Figure 4 illustrates the use of additional control circuitry to open the adapter input connection if a PSE is sensed. This removes the restriction of only using lower-voltage adapter sources to achieve PoE priority.

The *PoE Present* block must be designed so that it does not interfere with the detection signature resistor. The adapter switch, SW, will be opened whenever PoE running voltage is present. This forces the power to come from PoE, even if the adapter voltage is higher.



Figure 4. Use of Additional Circuitry to Provide PoE Priority Including 48-V Adapters



Several options for the *PoE present* and *SW* blocks are possible. Figure 5 illustrates the use of a zener diode ( $D_P$ ), NPN transistor ( $Q_P$ ), and several resistors to sense the presence of a PSE and open the adapter input connection.  $D_P$  blocks the  $Q_P$  and bias resistor impedance during PSE detection and classification. When PSE voltage is applied,  $Q_P$  turns on, which in turn opens the adapter input switch ( $M_A$ ) through PNP transistor  $Q_A$ .



Figure 5. PoE Priority Circuit Using Controlled Adapter High-Side Switch



### TPS23753 Internal Support Feature

www.ti.com

Figure 6 illustrates the use of a zener diode ( $D_P$ ), bias resistor, and opto-isolator ( $U_P$ ), to sense the presence of a PSE and open the adapter input connection.  $D_P$  blocks the  $U_P$  and bias resistor impedance during PSE detection and classification. When PSE voltage is applied,  $U_P$  turns on, which in turn opens the adapter input switch ( $M_A$ ). Note that the opto-isolator ( $U_P$ ) is only used as a level shifter.



Figure 6. PoE Priority Circuit Using Controlled Adapter Low-Side Switch

When  $D_{VDD}$  is used, additional protection of the TPS23753 internal hotswap MOSFET may be required. ESD events at the equipment terminals may cause large stresses in the hotswap MOSFET if DVDD becomes reverse biased and blocks transient current flow around the TPS23753. This effect is highly dependent on the individual design. For example, some designs may not be exposed to transients applied between the converter output and PoE input. The use of C<sub>VDD</sub> and D<sub>RTN</sub> as shown in Figure 7 provides additional protection should over-stress of the TPS23753 be an issue. As with D1, the SMAJ58A (or a part with equal to or better performance), is recommended for general indoor applications. Outdoor applications require more extensive protection to lightning standards.



Figure 7. Additional ESD Protection With PoE Priority



# 3.3 Option 2, Adapter Preference and APD

Figure 8 illustrates an efficient, low-cost circuit for Option 2, adapter preference, using the APD pin function. Adapter preference is accomplished by applying voltage to the APD pin with respect to RTN, forcing the internal hot-swap MOSFET to open. If the PD is operating from PoE power before a live adapter is inserted, the internal hot-swap MOSFET opens, forcing power to come from the adapter. The PSE may then drop power due to the PD current being below dc MPS. An adapter-powered PD is not successfully detected by a compliant PSE because the reverse-biased input bridge blocks the probing.



Figure 8. Adapter Preference Using the APD Pin Function

If the adapter source is removed or loses power, the PD will turn off while the PSE goes through a full detection, classification, and startup cycle. This assumes that the PSE had turned off due to a lack of dc MPS.

(1)

 $R_{APD1}$  and  $R_{APD2}$  provide ESD protection, leakage discharge for  $D_A$ , and input voltage qualification. Input voltage qualification can reduce or eliminate the occurrence of PD drop out when a slowly rising adapter input voltage is applied. Input voltage qualification can also be used to prevent converter start up issues due to operation at low voltage - high current conditions. The APD divider ratio should be chosen with consideration given to APD pin maximum recommended input voltage, class regulator and resistor power dissipation, and adapter-disable threshold. The following example illustrates selection of  $R_{APD1}$  and  $R_{APD2}$ .

- To prevent the converter from operating at an excessively low adapter voltage, choose a startup voltage, V<sub>START</sub> approximately 75% of nominal. Assuming that the adapter output is 48V +/- 10%, this provides 15% margin below the minimum adapter operating voltage.
- 2. Choose  $V_{\text{START}} = 48 \times 0.75 = 36 \text{ V}.$
- 3. Select  $R_{APD2}$  considering power dissipation. Choose  $R_{APD2} = 3.01 \text{ k}\Omega$

$$\mathsf{DR}_{\mathsf{APD}} = \frac{\mathsf{Vin}_{\mathsf{MIN}}}{\mathsf{V}_{\mathsf{APDEN}}} = \frac{36 \text{ V}}{1.5 \text{ V}} = 24$$

$$R_{APD1} = R_{APD2} \times (DR_{APD} - 1) = 3.01 \text{ k}\Omega \times 23 = 69.23 \text{ k}\Omega$$

- 4. Choose  $R_{APD1} = 69.8 \text{ k}\Omega$
- 5. Check the adapter turnon voltage.

$$V_{\text{ADPTR}_\text{OFF}} = \frac{R_{\text{APD1}} + R_{\text{APD2}}}{R_{\text{APD2}}} \times V_{\text{APDEN}} = \frac{72.81 \text{ k}\Omega}{3.01 \text{ k}\Omega} \times 1.5 \text{ V} = 36.3 \text{ V}$$
<sup>(2)</sup>

6. Check the adapter turnoff voltage.

$$V_{\text{ADPTR}_{\text{OFF}}} = \frac{R_{\text{APD1}} + R_{\text{APD2}}}{R_{\text{APD2}}} \times \left(V_{\text{APDEN}} - V_{\text{APDH}}\right) = \frac{72.81 \text{ k}\Omega}{3.01 \text{ k}\Omega} \times 1.2 \text{ V} = 29 \text{ V}$$
(3)

7. Check the APD pin voltage at maximum adapter input

$$V_{APD} < \frac{Vin_{MAX}}{\left(\frac{R_{APD1} + R_{APD2}}{R_{APD2}}\right)} = \frac{48 \times 1.1 \text{ V}}{\left(\frac{72.81 \text{ k}\Omega}{3.01 \text{ k}\Omega}\right)} = 2.19 \text{ V}$$

$$(4)$$

8.  $V_{APD}$  is less than  $V_B$  and so is within the recommended maximum.

APD turns the class regulator off when the input voltage is above the threshold. When low-voltage adapters are to be used, the APD pin divider can be chosen with class regulator and class resistor power dissipation in mind. With lower APD divider ratios, caution must be exercised to avoid damage to the APD pin if used with a higher-voltage adapter.



### 3.4 Option 3, PoE Priority

In applications where a regulator is to follow the PoE converter  $V_{OUT}$ , an option-3 ORing topology can be used as shown in Figure 9. To achieve PoE preference using option-3 ORing, the adapter voltage  $V_{ADP}$  must be less than the PoE output voltage,  $V_{OUT}$ , to prevent the PSE from potentially removing power due to dc MPS. When used with a secondary-side synchronous rectifier, this circuit needs special attention to turn the rectifier off when the adapter takes over. This prevents power from flowing backwards and powering the primary side of the converter.



Figure 9. Option 3 With PoE Preference

Advanced Adapter ORing Solutions using the TPS23753 SLVA306A–July



## 3.5 Option 3, Adapter Priority

Applications using option 3 with adapter priority may want to disable the PSE source. The TPS23753 allows the PoE input to be turned off using the DEN pin, thereby disabling the internal hot-swap MOSFET and class regulator.

This may be accomplished using the circuit of Figure 10. When the opto-coupler diode is driven and the TPS23753 is powered by the PSE, the internal hot-swap MOSFET is turned off and the converter stops drawing PSE power. A PSE that monitors the dc MPS turns port power off after ~400 ms. The choice of resistors on DEN skews the detection signature outside the acceptable range, preventing a compliant PSE from re-powering the PD. When an adapter is removed, the PD will turn off until the PSE completes its detection – classification – startup sequence. This approach also has the same problem with synchronous rectifiers. Take care to disable them when the output is powered from the adapter.



Figure 10. Use of the DEN Pin to Disable the PoE MOSFET

Selection of the resistor divider ( $R_{DEN1}$  and  $R_{DEN2}$ ) on DEN takes a bit of compromise to provide both an invalid detection signature resistance, and a current below the dc MPS threshold. The PSE must reject a PD signature below 15 k $\Omega$ , and disconnect a PD drawing less than 5 mA. From the PD side, an invalid detection signature is less than 12 k $\Omega$ , and the PD must draw at least 10 mA to remain connected. The R<sub>DEN1</sub> value shown causes an invalid detection signature to be presented to the PSE, and presents approximately 4 mA to the PSE at maximum PSE output voltage.

The opto-coupler (U<sub>D</sub>) transistor must be rated for at least 70 V. A high current transfer ratio (CTR) of 300%–400% is suggested to reduce the amount of control (V<sub>5V</sub>) current, but this is not a hard requirement.  $R_{DEN2}$  is chosen so that the  $R_{DEN1}$  and  $R_{DEN2}$  total resistance is approximately 25 k $\Omega$ .

## 3.6 Keeping the PSE Powered With Options 2 and 3

In many of the previous adapter priority sections, the PSE drops the PD when the adapter is present. To prevent this, the circuit shown in Figure 11 can be used to draw enough current to satisfy the MPS. It should be noted that this power is dissipated all the time the adapter is present.  $D_{VDD}$  is present to allow a PSE to detect the PD if it becomes active after the adapter is powering the PD. DP blocks the bias resistor impedance during PSE detection and classification. The bias resistor is chosen to provide at least 10 mA MPS current even if an adapter is powering the converter.

Alternatively, an opto-isolator could be used to detect the presence of adapter voltage (through opto LED and bias resistor) and switch in the 10mA bias current at the PoE input.



Figure 11. Keeping the PSE Source On in the Presence of an Adapter Source

This circuit works well for an Option 3, although the PoE converter has a small delay before it goes from inactive to supplying power. When used in Option 2, this works best with a 48-V adapter. If the PSE power comes up after the adapter, there is a short power interruption as the PD state machine completes its inrush cycle.

# 4 Conclusion

The TPS23753 provides expanded adapter ORing options through the use of the  $V_{DD1}$ , APD, and DEN pins. This high degree of flexibility simplifies adapter ORing options and provides a robust, reliable design.

# 5 References

1. TPS23753 IEEE 8023-2005 PoE Interface and Isolated Converter Controller data sheet (SLVS853)

### **IMPORTANT NOTICE**

Texas Instruments Incorporated and its subsidiaries (TI) reserve the right to make corrections, modifications, enhancements, improvements, and other changes to its products and services at any time and to discontinue any product or service without notice. Customers should obtain the latest relevant information before placing orders and should verify that such information is current and complete. All products are sold subject to TI's terms and conditions of sale supplied at the time of order acknowledgment.

TI warrants performance of its hardware products to the specifications applicable at the time of sale in accordance with TI's standard warranty. Testing and other quality control techniques are used to the extent TI deems necessary to support this warranty. Except where mandated by government requirements, testing of all parameters of each product is not necessarily performed.

TI assumes no liability for applications assistance or customer product design. Customers are responsible for their products and applications using TI components. To minimize the risks associated with customer products and applications, customers should provide adequate design and operating safeguards.

TI does not warrant or represent that any license, either express or implied, is granted under any TI patent right, copyright, mask work right, or other TI intellectual property right relating to any combination, machine, or process in which TI products or services are used. Information published by TI regarding third-party products or services does not constitute a license from TI to use such products or services or a warranty or endorsement thereof. Use of such information may require a license from a third party under the patents or other intellectual property of the third party, or a license from TI under the patents or other intellectual property of TI.

Reproduction of TI information in TI data books or data sheets is permissible only if reproduction is without alteration and is accompanied by all associated warranties, conditions, limitations, and notices. Reproduction of this information with alteration is an unfair and deceptive business practice. TI is not responsible or liable for such altered documentation. Information of third parties may be subject to additional restrictions.

Resale of TI products or services with statements different from or beyond the parameters stated by TI for that product or service voids all express and any implied warranties for the associated TI product or service and is an unfair and deceptive business practice. TI is not responsible or liable for any such statements.

TI products are not authorized for use in safety-critical applications (such as life support) where a failure of the TI product would reasonably be expected to cause severe personal injury or death, unless officers of the parties have executed an agreement specifically governing such use. Buyers represent that they have all necessary expertise in the safety and regulatory ramifications of their applications, and acknowledge and agree that they are solely responsible for all legal, regulatory and safety-related requirements concerning their products and any use of TI products in such safety-critical applications, notwithstanding any applications-related information or support that may be provided by TI. Further, Buyers must fully indemnify TI and its representatives against any damages arising out of the use of TI products in such safety-critical applications.

TI products are neither designed nor intended for use in military/aerospace applications or environments unless the TI products are specifically designated by TI as military-grade or "enhanced plastic." Only products designated by TI as military-grade meet military specifications. Buyers acknowledge and agree that any such use of TI products which TI has not designated as military-grade is solely at the Buyer's risk, and that they are solely responsible for compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements in connection with such use.

TI products are neither designed nor intended for use in automotive applications or environments unless the specific TI products are designated by TI as compliant with ISO/TS 16949 requirements. Buyers acknowledge and agree that, if they use any non-designated products in automotive applications, TI will not be responsible for any failure to meet such requirements.

Following are URLs where you can obtain information on other Texas Instruments products and application solutions:

Products		Applications	
Amplifiers	amplifier.ti.com	Audio	www.ti.com/audio
Data Converters	dataconverter.ti.com	Automotive	www.ti.com/automotive
DLP® Products	www.dlp.com	Communications and Telecom	www.ti.com/communications
DSP	dsp.ti.com	Computers and Peripherals	www.ti.com/computers
Clocks and Timers	www.ti.com/clocks	Consumer Electronics	www.ti.com/consumer-apps
Interface	interface.ti.com	Energy	www.ti.com/energy
Logic	logic.ti.com	Industrial	www.ti.com/industrial
Power Mgmt	power.ti.com	Medical	www.ti.com/medical
Microcontrollers	microcontroller.ti.com	Security	www.ti.com/security
RFID	www.ti-rfid.com	Space, Avionics & Defense	www.ti.com/space-avionics-defense
RF/IF and ZigBee® Solutions	www.ti.com/lprf	Video and Imaging	www.ti.com/video
		Wireless	www.ti.com/wireless-apps

Mailing Address: Texas Instruments, Post Office Box 655303, Dallas, Texas 75265 Copyright © 2010, Texas Instruments Incorporated